The Corporation of the Township of Georgian Bluffs

By-law Number 2024-061

This document is public and available in an accessible format upon request.

Being a By-law to amend Procedure By-Law 2019-125.

Whereas Section 238 (2) of the Municipal Act, R.S.O. 2001, as amended requires that every municipality and local Board shall pass a Procedure By-law for governing the calling, place and proceedings of meetings; and

Whereas Council of the Township of Georgian Bluffs enacted Procedure By-law 2019-125 on November 20, 2019; and

Whereas Council of the Township of Georgian Bluffs deems it necessary to amend Procedure By-law 2019-125 to provide routine updates to meeting procedures;

Now therefore, the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Georgian Bluffs enacts the following:

- 1. That all routine and procedural amendments to Procedure By-law 2019-125, as included in Schedule "A" to this by-law are hereby authorized.
- 2. That this by-law shall come into force and effect on January 1, 2025.

Read a first and second time this 20th day of November 2024.

Read a third time and finally passed this 20th day of November 2024.

Mayor - Sue Carleton

Clerk - Carly Craig

Report Approval Details

Document Title:	By-Law 2024-061 - Amend Procedure By-Law.docx
Attachments:	- Draft Procedure By-Law Update.docx
Final Approval Date:	Nov 7, 2024

This report and all of its attachments were approved and signed as outlined below:

Brittany Drury, Deputy CAO/Director of Corporate Services

Niall Lobley, Chief Administrative Officer

Township of Georgian Bluffs

Procedure By-law

(Office Consolidation - 2020-035 (repealed), 2020-054 (repealed), 2020-101)

Contents

Part I –	Interpretation	. l
1.	Short Title	. 1
2.	Purpose	. 1
3.	Principles	. 1
4.	Definitions	. 1
5.	Application	. 4
Part II -	- Meetings	. 4
6.	First Meeting	. 4
7.	Regular Meetings	. 4
8.	Special Meetings	. 5
9.	Notice of Meetings	. 5
10.	Actions in Public	. 6
11.	Closed Session	. 6
12.	Electronic Participation	. 7
Part III	– Roles and Responsibilities	. 8
13.	Chair	. 8
14.	Members	. 8
15.	Clerk	. 9
Part IV	- Council Meeting Procedures	. 9
16.	Agendas	. 9
17.	Order of Business	9
18.	Commencement of Meeting	10
19.	Declarations of Pecuinary Interest	10
20.	Announcements	11
21.	Public Hearings	11
22.	Public Participation	12
23.	Consent Agenda	13
24.	Correspondence	14
25.	Committee Reports	14
26.	By-laws	
27.	Notice of Motion	
28.	Adjournment	15
Part V	– Rules of Debate	15
29.	Speaking at Meetings	
30.	Motions and Amendments	
31.	Taking the Vote	
32.	Recorded Vote	17
33.	Reconsideration	17
34.	Points of Order and Privilege	18
35.	Absenteeism and Leave of Absence	
36.	Minutes	
Part V	l - Committees	
37.	Committee of the Whole	
38	Other Committees	

Part VII - Accessibility	20
39. Accessibility	20
Part VIII - Repeal	20
40. Repeal	20
· ·	

,

The Corporation of the Township of Georgian Bluffs

By-law Number 2019-125

Being a By-law to govern the proceedings of Council and Committees, and to repeal By-laws 2017-091 and 2017-106.

Whereas Section 238 (2) of the *Municipal Act, R.S.O. 2001*, as amended requires that every municipality and local Board shall pass a Procedure By-law for governing the calling, place and proceedings of meetings; and

Whereas it is desirable to provide rules for the conducting of public business at the meetings of the Township of Georgian Bluffs;

Now Therefore the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Georgian Bluffs enacts as follows:

Part I - Interpretation

- 1. Short Title
 - 1.1 This by-law shall be known as "The Procedure By-law".
- 2. Purpose
 - 2.1 The purpose of this by-law is to govern the calling, place and proceedings of meetings.
- 3. Principles
 - 3.1 This by-law sets out processes that are open, transparent and accountable to the public. In the context of Council proceedings, these principles are accomplished by:
 - a) Ensuring the decision-making process is understood by the public and other stakeholders;
 - b) Providing access to information and opportunities for input by the public and other stakeholders consistent with the requirements of this by-law and other statutory requirements; and
 - c) Exercising and respecting individual and collective roles and responsibilities provided for in this Procedure By-law and other statutory requirements.
 - 3.2 The principles of parliamentary law governing Council Meetings include:
 - a) The majority of Members have the right to decide;
 - b) The minority of Members have the right to be heard;
 - c) All Members have the right to information to help make decisions, unless otherwise prevented by law;
 - d) All Members have a right to an efficient meeting;
 - e) All Members have the right to be treated with respect and courtesy;
 - f) All Members have equal rights, privileges and obligations.
- 4. Definitions
 - 4.1 In this By-law:

"Ad Hoc Committee" means a special purpose committee of limited duration, created by Council to inquire and report on a particular matter or concern, and which dissolves automatically upon submitting its final report, unless otherwise directed by Council.

"Advisory Committee" means a committee comprised of one or more Members of Council and/or members of the public appointed by Council for a specific purpose or mandate.

"CAO" means the Chief Administrative Officer of the Township.

"Chair" means the Mayor or the presiding officer of a meeting.

"Clerk" means the Clerk of the Township of Georgian Bluffs or his or her designate.

"Closed Session" means that portion of a meeting closed to the public in accordance with Section 239 (2) of the *Municipal Act* and as defined in Section 11 of this by-law.

"Committee of the Whole" means Council sitting as a committee generally once per month where:

- Members consider and debate matters for recommendation to Council in an environment that is procedurally more relaxed than the formal Council meeting.
- b) Motions adopted therein are not deemed to represent the final decision of Council until confirmed by resolution or by-law of Council.

"Committee Recommendation" means a motion passed by a committee during a committee meeting and recommended for adoption by Council.

"Consent Agenda" means a list of items on the Agenda, all of which may be adopted by one motion of Council or Committee, but any of which may be transferred to the regular agenda for consideration upon the request of a Member;

"Council" means the elected and sworn Members of Council of the Township of Georgian Bluffs.

"Defer", when used in connection with a matter or item before Council or a committee, means that the said matter or item is to be dealt with later in the same meeting, or at the next meeting of the same body, or at the meeting of the same body that is specified in the motion to defer.

"Delegation" means a person intending to address Council or committee on a matter where a decision of Council may be required (may also be referred to as deputation).

"Deputy Mayor" means the Deputy Head of Council.

"Local Board" means a local board established or exercising any power under any Act with respect to the affairs or purposes of one or more municipalities but does not include the Township of Georgian Bluffs Police Services Board, a Public Library Board or a Conservation Board.

"Mayor" means the Mayor as Head of Council, or in the absence of the Mayor, the Deputy Mayor or, in the absence of both, another Member of Council appointed by Council.

"Member" means a Member of Council or committee, and includes the Mayor and Deputy Mayor.

"Municipal Act" means the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c.25.

"Notice" means notice that includes the time and place of a meeting and, in the instance of a special meeting, shall include the purpose of the meeting and whether the meeting was called by the Mayor or upon petition.

"Notice of Motion" means notice, including the name of the mover, advising Council that the motion described therein will be brought at a subsequent meeting.

"Point of Order" means a Member calling attention to:

- a) any breach of the rules of order pursuant to this Procedure By-law;
 or
- b) the use of improper offensive or abusive language; or
- c) notice of the fact that the matter under discussion is not within the scope of the proposed motion; or
- d) any other informality or irregularity in the proceedings of the meeting.

"Point of Personal Privilege" means a Member calling attention to a matter relating to:

- statements challenging the integrity of Council, committee or individual Members; or
- b) an individual Member (e.g. statements made during the meeting naming that Member specifically, comments regarding a Member's character, an incorrect record of a Member's participation in a meeting contained in minutes approved in a Member's absence); or
- the rights and privileges of Council or committee (e.g. the accuracy of published reports of its proceedings; the conduct of its officers, employees or visitors; the comfort of Members with respect to heating, ventilation, lighting, noise).

"Presentation" means the verbal and/or visual provision of information to Council by an individual, community group or organization.

"Public Hearing" means a public meeting of Council or Committee of the Whole, or that portion of a meeting of Council or Committee of the Whole which is convened to hear matters pursuant to and as required by:

- a) the Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, c. P.13;
- b) any other Act; or
- c) a resolution or by-law of Council.

"Quorum" means a majority (more than half) of the whole number of Members of Council or a Committee except where a Member has or Members have declared a pecuniary interest pursuant to the *Municipal Conflict of Interest Act*, the quorum may be less than half plus one of the whole number of Members but shall not be less than two.

"Refer", when used in connection with a matter or item before Council or a committee, means that the said matter or item is referred to the body or person named in the motion to refer, for further consideration and action.

"Recorded Vote" means a written record of the name and vote of each Member on a motion or question conducted by the Clerk.

"Rules of Procedure" means the rules and regulations provided in this bylaw.

5. Application

- 5.1 This by-law applies to all meetings of Council, Committees of Council and Local Boards.
- 5.2 Notwithstanding Section 5.1, Council may by resolution or by-law allow a board or committee to establish its own procedures.
- 5.3 Notwithstanding Section 5.1, the rules and regulations contained in this by-law may be suspended by a vote of two-thirds of the Members present and voting.
- 5.4 In the event of conflict between the provisions of this by-law and the *Municipal Act* or any other legislation, the provisions of the legislation shall prevail.
- 5.5 If there is a conflict between two or more rules in this by-law, or if there is no specific rule on a matter, the Chair will rule. In making a ruling, the Chair may consult the Clerk, rely on previous rulings and practices, or refer to Robert's Rules of Order.
- 5.6 Cover page, headings and table of contents are included for ease of reference only and are not to be used as interpretation aids.
- 5.7 Specific references to laws in this by-law are meant to refer to the current laws applicable within the Province of Ontario as at the time the by-law was enacted, as they are amended from time to time. In all cases, the reference includes the statute, as amended from time to time, including successors.

Part II - Meetings

6. First Meeting

The Inaugural Meeting of Council after a regular election shall be held on the Wednesday following the first day of the Council term of office as established by the *Municipal Elections Act*, and the meeting shall be held at 5:00 pm.

7. Regular Meetings

- 7.1 Regular meetings of Council and committees shall be held at the Council chambers at the township offices, except as may be determined by Council resolution from time to time or in accordance with the Township Electronic Participation Policy.
- 7.2 Regular meetings of Council shall be held in accordance with the annual meeting calendar.
- 7.3 Regular meeting of Council and Committee of the Whole shall be held at 5:00 p.m. on alternating Wednesdays. Committee and Local Board meetings shall be held in accordance with the timing and intervals set by the Committee or Local Board.
- 7.5 The Mayor or the Chair of a committee, prior to a regularly scheduled meeting, may cancel the meeting due to inclement weather, a matter of respect or a lack of corporate business requiring immediate attention.
 - a) Where a statutory public meeting has been scheduled as part of a regular meeting that has been cancelled, every reasonable effort shall be made to conduct the meeting.
 - b) In the event of a cancelled statutory public meeting, Staff shall make every effort to give notice of the cancellation to interested

parties and the public as soon as is practicable via either telephone or e-mail or the Township website or radio or any other method, as well as the date of re-scheduling.

8. Special Meetings

- 8.1 The Mayor may at any time summon a special meeting of Council or Committee of the Whole.
- 8.2 The Clerk shall summon a special meeting upon receipt of a petition of the majority of Council Members for the purpose and at the time and date mentioned in the petition.
- 8.3 No business shall be considered at a special meeting of Council or Committee of the Whole except that for which the meeting was called, except by unanimous consent of the Members present at such special meeting.
- 8.4 In either of 8.1 or 8.2, the Special Meeting shall be held no sooner than 24 hours following the Mayor's summons or receipt of the petition, as the case may be, and that the Clerk shall provide notice of a special meeting immediately following receipt of the summons or petition.
- 8.5 Notwithstanding the requirements set out in Section 8.3, and the notice requirements set out in Section 9.3, in the event of a bona fide emergency, the meeting may be held as soon as practicable following receipt of the summons or petition, as the case may be, and notice may be given by telephone, fax, email or personal contact as determined by the Clerk.

9. Notice of Meetings

- 9.1 Notice of a Council or committee meeting is deemed to have been given to a Member if the agenda is:
 - a) delivered by electronic mail, or
 - b) because of technological failure, delivered personally or left at the usual place of residence or business of the Member.
- 9.2 Public Notice of all meetings shall be given by notification of future meetings in previous agendas, and posting the agenda on the Township website at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting.
- 9.3 Where a matter is urgent and a meeting is required, all necessary steps shall be taken to adhere to the notice requirements of Section 9.2. Where 48 hours notice cannot be provided, with majority consent of all of the Members, a Meeting of the Council may be held without notice.
- 9.4 In the case of a special meeting called in accordance with this by-law, notice shall be given by delivering the agenda to Members in accordance with Section 9.1, and posting of the agenda on the Township website, as soon as is practicable after date and time of the special meeting has been established and any other notice that is permitted within the timeframe shall be given.
- 9.4 The notice for a special meeting shall specify the purpose for which the meeting is convened.
- 9.5 Where a statutory public meeting under the *Municipal Act*, the *Planning Act*, the *Development Charges Act* or any other Act as scheduled for a cancelled meeting under Section 7.5, with the public meeting shall be rescheduled in accordance with notice requirements under said Act(s).

10. Actions in Public

10.1 Except as provided in this by-law, all meetings shall be open to the public.

11. Closed Session

- 11.1 Council or a committee may meet in Closed Session if the following subject matters are being considered:
 - a) the security of the property of the municipality or Local Board;
 - b) personal matters about an identifiable individual, including municipal and Local Board employees;
 - c) a proposed or pending acquisition of land for municipal or Local Board purposes;
 - d) labour relations or employee negotiations;
 - e) litigation or potential litigation, including matters before administrative tribunals affecting the municipality or Local Board;
 - f) the receiving of advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, including communications necessary for that purpose;
 - g) a matter in respect of which a council, board, committee or other body has authorized a meeting to be closed under another Act.
 - h) information explicitly supplied in confidence to the municipality or local board by Canada, a province or territory or a Crown agency of any of them;
 - i) a trade secret or scientific, technical, commercial, financial or labour relations information, supplied in confidence to the municipality or local board, which, if disclosed, could reasonably be expected to prejudice significantly the competitive position or interfere significantly with the contractual or other negotiations of a person, group of persons, or organization.
 - j) a trade secret or scientific, technical, commercial or financial information that belongs to the municipality or local board and has monetary value or potential monetary value.
 - a position, plan, procedure, criteria or instruction to be applied to any negotiations carried on or to be carried on by or on behalf of the municipality or local board.
- 11.2 A meeting of Council or a committee may be closed to the public if the following conditions are both satisfied:
 - a) the meeting is held for the purpose of educating or training the Members; and
 - at the meeting, no Member discusses or otherwise deals with any matter in a way that materially advances the business or decisionmaking of Council, Local Board or committee.
- 11.3 A meeting shall be closed to the public if the subject matter relates to
 - a) the consideration of a request under the *Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act* if Council is the head of an institution for the purposes of that Act, or
 - b) an ongoing investigation respecting the Township, a Local Board or a Township-controlled corporation by the Ombudsman appointed under the *Ombudsman Act*, an Ombudsman referred to in subsection 223.13 (1) of the *Municipal Act*, or the investigator referred to in subsection 239.2 (1) of the *Municipal Act*.
- 11.4 Before holding a meeting or part of a meeting that is to be closed to the public, Council or committee shall state by resolution:
 - a) the fact of the holding of the Closed Session and applicable open meeting exemption; or

- b) in the case of a meeting under Section 11.3 of this by-law, the fact of the holding of a Closed Session, the general nature of its subject-matter and that it is to be closed under that Section.
- c) any persons other than a Member and staff authorized to attend the closed meeting.
- 11.5 No meeting shall be closed to the public during the taking of a vote, unless:
 - a) unless Section 11.2 or 11.3 permits or requires a meeting to be closed to the public; and
 - b) the vote is for a procedural matter or for giving directions or instructions to officers, employees or agents for Council, or committee or persons retained by or under contract with the municipality.
- 11.6 The rules of Council shall be observed in Closed Sessions as far as may be applicable.
- 11.7 A majority of the voting Members of Council shall constitute a quorum of Council for the Closed Session.
- 11.8 No Member or other person attending a Closed Session shall release a confidential report considered at a Closed Session, or discuss the content of such a report with persons other than Members of Council, or municipal staff members and/or agents of Council concerned with the report, without the authorization of Council.
- 11.9 The Clerk may require that copies of any reports or documents circulated at a closed session regarding confidential matters related to an individual employee shall be collected by the Clerk and destroyed.
- 11.10 All closed meetings shall be held in accordance with the Township Closed Session Policy.
- 11.11 All closed meetings shall be recorded in accordance with the Township Recording of Council and Committees of Council Closed Meetings Policy.
- 12. Electronic Participation (By-law 2020-101)
 - 12.1 Electronic participation is permitted in all meetings of Council, Local Boards or Committees of either of them, in periods of a declared emergency and those outside a declared emergency, further to Electronic Participation Policy COU-02-2020.
 - 12.2 Notwithstanding point a) above, members shall not be permitted to participate electronically in the Inaugural Meeting of Council.
 - 12.3 A member of Council, a Local Board or a Committee of either of them who is participating electronically in a meeting shall be counted in determining quorum.
 - 12.4 Electronic participation shall be permitted in closed meeting discussions.
 - 12.5 All electronic meeting procedures shall be determined to be as defined in Electronic Participation Policy COU-02-2020, as amended from time to time.

Part III - Roles and Responsibilities

13. Chair

- 13.1 The Chair of the meeting is responsible for:
 - a) presiding at and facilitating all meetings;
 - b) putting to a vote on all motions which are duly moved and seconded, and to announce the result of the vote;
 - c) declining to put to a vote any motion which contravenes this Procedure By-law;
 - enforcing the rules of order in this Procedure By-law and decorum among the Members and attendees/audience members of the public;
 - e) enforcing order and good behaviour of all Members in accordance with the Rules of Procedure when engaged in debate;
 - f) when a Member persists, following several reminders, in breaching the Rules of Procedure and disrupting the business of Council, ordering the Member to vacate the Council chambers for the duration of the meeting;
 - g) ensuring that all Members who wish to speak on a motion have spoken;
 - h) ensuring clarity, where required, by reading, or requesting the Clerk to read, motions before voting;
 - i) voting on all matters unless prohibited by law;
 - j) deciding all questions of order at the meeting, subject to an appeal by any Member on any question of order in respect to business before Council;
 - k) maintaining, throughout the duration of a meeting, a list containing the names of the Members and public attendees who wish to speak to an item on the agenda;
 - adjourning the meeting without the question put, in the case of grave disorder arising in the meeting room;
 - m) adjourning the meeting when the business of the meeting has concluded;
 - n) executing, by his/her signature when necessary, all by-laws, resolutions and minutes of a meeting and other required documents;
 - o) representing and supporting Council, declaring its will, and implicitly obeying its decisions in all matters; and
 - p) respecting the confidentiality of matters discussed in Closed Sessions and not disclosing the subject or substance of these discussions unless authorized to do so.

14. Members

- 14.1 The Members are responsible for, where applicable:
 - a) attending scheduled meetings:
 - b) carefully considering and making decisions about meeting business, including seeking information and advice from staff prior to and during a meeting;
 - c) respecting and following the rules of order, the Chair's final ruling, and Council's collective decision;
 - participating in a meeting and not interrupting, unless to raise a
 Point of Order or Point of Personal Privilege, as set out in Section 34 of this by-law;
 - e) voting on all matters unless prohibited by law;
 - f) advising the Chair or Clerk of any absences; and
 - g) respecting the confidentiality of matters discussed in Closed Session and not disclosing the subject or substance of these discussions unless authorized to do so.

14.2 No Member shall:

- a) use offensive words or unparliamentary language in or against Council or against any member of staff or the public;
- b) speak on any subject other than the subject in debate;
- c) criticize any decision of Council or continue to debate the matter after it has been decided, except for the purpose of moving that the question be reconsidered;
- d) disobey the Rules of Procedure or a decision of the Chair or of Council on questions of order or practice or upon the interpretation of the rules of Council;
- e) disclose any information that is deemed to be confidential pursuant to the *Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act*.
- 14.3 Where a Member persists in any disobedience of the Rules of Procedure after having been called to order by the Chair, the Chair shall forthwith put the question, no amendment, adjournment or debate being allowed, "that such Member be ordered to leave his/her seat for the duration of the meeting of Council", but if the Member apologizes they may be permitted to retake their seat.

15. Clerk

- 15.1 The Clerk or Deputy Clerk shall be present at all meetings of Council.
- 15.2 The Clerk or the Clerk's designate shall be responsible for the management and coordination of meeting agendas and related resolutions, by-laws, minutes, correspondence and records, and allow for public access to the same in accordance with the *Municipal Act*, the *Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act*, and other pertinent legislation.

Part IV - Council Meeting Procedures

16. Agendas

- 16.1 The agendas shall be considered Notice of meetings as provided in Section 9.
- 16.2 Any Member may request that an item for discussion be included on a meeting agenda by submitting a Notice of Motion to the attention of Council.
- 16.4. In consultation with the Chair and CAO, an item of an urgent nature may be placed on an addendum/addenda to the agenda if the item is received by the Clerk after the agenda has been published. The addendum/addenda shall be added to Council agenda for approval at the meeting as per Section 17.3. The motion to approve the addendum/addenda shall be one motion. The term "urgent" implies the item, due to its nature, cannot be properly presented at an appropriate Committee of the Whole meeting.

17. Order of Business

- 17.1 The general order of business on a regular Council agenda shall be as follows:
 - 1. Call to Order
 - 2. Land Acknowledgement
 - Adoption of Agenda
 - 4. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest
 - 5. Minutes of Previous Meetings

- 6. Announcements
- 7. Public Hearings
- 8. Public Participation
 - i. Delegations on Agenda Items
- 9. Consent Agenda
 - i. Resolutions From Other Municipalities
 - ii. Correspondence
 - iii. Minutes
- 10. Reports
 - i. Committee Reports
 - 1. Committee of the Whole
 - ii. Recommendation Reports
 - iii. Informational Reports
- 11. By-laws
- 12. Unfinished Business
- New Business
- 14. Notice of Motion
- 15. Closed Session
- 16. Reporting Out of Closed Session
- 17. Confirming By-law
- 18. Date of Next Regular Meeting/Adjournment
- 17.2 The business shall, in all cases, be taken up in the order in which it stands on the agenda, unless a change in order is moved and agreed to by a majority vote.
- 17.3 Additions to the agenda shall only be permitted for items of an urgent nature, with a majority vote. The urgent item shall only be presented if deemed appropriate by the Chair in consultation with the Clerk and CAO.
- 18. Commencement of Meeting
 - 18.1 At the hour set for the meeting, or as soon thereafter as a Quorum is present, the Mayor or in the Mayor's absence the Deputy Mayor, shall take the Chair and call the Members to order.
 - 18.2 In case neither the Mayor nor the Deputy Mayor is in attendance within 15 minutes after the hour appointed, and subject to a quorum being present, Council shall appoint an acting Mayor who shall call the meeting to order and shall preside over the meeting until the arrival of the Mayor or Deputy Mayor, and all proceedings of such meeting shall be deemed to be regular, and in full force and effect.
 - 18.3 If a quorum is not present 15 minutes after the time appointed for the meeting, the Clerk shall record the names of the Members present at the expiration of such time and announce that Council shall then stand adjourned until the next meeting, unless a special meeting is called in the meantime.
 - 18.4 Subject to provisions under the *Municipal Conflict of Interest Act*, if at any meeting the number of Members is reduced to less than the number required for a Quorum, Council shall stand adjourned.

18.5 Any unfinished business remaining at the time of the adjournment, due to the loss of the Quorum, shall be considered at the next regular meeting, or it shall be placed on the agenda for a special meeting called for the purpose of dealing with the unfinished items.

19. Declarations of Pecuniary Interest

- 19.1 In addition to a verbal declaration, each Member must provide to the Clerk at the Meeting a written statement of the Member's pecuniary interest(s), if any, in accordance with the Municipal Conflict of Interest Act. The statement shall include a description of the general nature of the pecuniary interest(s) and a reference to the agenda item(s) to which the statement relates.
- 19.2 The Clerk will record declarations of pecuniary interest made by a Member at the Meeting in the Meeting minutes, noting the general nature of the pecuniary interest.
- 19.3 A registry of written statements and any relevant meeting minute extracts will be posted on the Township Website in accordance with the Clerk's administrative procedures.

20. Announcements

- 20.1 Members may present community and municipal-related announcements when called upon by the Chair.
- 20.2 A member of the public who wishes an announcement to be made at a Council meeting must make the request in writing to the Clerk by Thursday of the week preceding the meeting.
 - a) It shall be the decision of the Clerk, in consultation with the Mayor, whether the announcement will be included on the agenda.
 - b) The announcement may be made at the meeting by the requesting member of the public, or the Mayor, or a Member of Council.

21. Public Hearings

- 21.1 If a Public Hearing is required by any Act, it shall be conducted in accordance with the provisions of this section.
- 21.2 Public Hearings shall be conducted at meetings of Council.
- 21.3 The procedure by which the Public Hearing will be conducted or by which public input will be obtained shall be as follows:
 - a) the Chair shall declare the hearing on the matter open;
 - b) the Clerk shall provide information regarding publication of notice of the Public Hearing;
 - the administration shall present a report on the matter under consideration including the administration recommendations;
 - d) if it is a hearing that involves an applicant, the applicant shall be given an opportunity to make representations on the matter under consideration:
 - e) after the applicant, any person or group of persons or spokesperson acting on behalf of another person or group shall be given an opportunity to make representations on the matter under consideration;
 - f) if it is a hearing that involves an applicant, at the conclusion of the speakers, the applicant shall be given an opportunity to respond to the representations of other people;
 - g) Council may request further information from administration;
 - h) Council shall formally receive all communications and written reports submitted to it on the subject matter of the hearing;

- i) the Chair shall declare the hearing closed;
- j) Council shall consider the matter and at the conclusion of the deliberations, and when appropriate and necessary, council shall vote on the by-law or resolution in accordance with the procedures contained in this by-law;
- a hearing may be adjourned to a certain date;

22. Public Participation

- 22.1 Any person may, by written notice to the Clerk, request an opportunity to address the Members of Council on any matter within the jurisdiction of the Township in accordance with this section.
- 22.2 It shall be the decision of the Clerk and CAO in consultation with the Mayor, whether a request will be included on an agenda.
- 22.3 Presentations and public inquiries shall appear before Committee of the Whole. An opportunity for Delegations for Items on the Agenda will be provided at both Committee and Council meetings.
- 22.6 Where a particular matter is expected to generate a large number of delegations (namely, ten (10) delegations or more), council may pass a resolution to hold a special meeting in order to afford all delegations an opportunity to address the committee.
- 22.6 No public participant shall:
 - a) speak disrespectfully of any person;
 - b) use offensive words or unparliamentary language;
 - c) speak on any subject other than the subject for which he or she received approval to address; or
 - d) disobey the rules of order or a decision of the Chair.
- 22.7 Members may ask questions of clarification of the participant, but shall not engage in debate with the same.
- 22.8 For presentations and delegations regarding matters listed elsewhere on the agenda, Council may, by majority vote, bring the matter forward to be dealt with at the same time as the presentation or delegation.
- 22.9 Presentations and delegations shall be received for information, or received and referred to staff for report to be considered at a future meeting, or received and referred to a committee for further discussion.
- 22. 10 The Clerk, in consultation with the CAO, may refuse a delegation when there has been or will be at least one (1) public meeting, including a Committee of the Whole meeting, held at which the public was provided the opportunity to make formal presentations on that subject matter.

22.11 Presentations

- a) For the purposes of this procedure, a presentation is defined as a verbal and/or visual address of Council by an individual, community group, or organization.
- b) A ceremonial presentation is defined as an award, prize or other form of recognition provided by Council at a meeting.
- c) Any person, group, or organization may request to present on subject matter within the jurisdiction of Council.
- d) Requests must be submitted seven (7) days in advance of the meeting.

- e) Presenters will be allotted ten (10) minutes to provide their presentation. The time allotment may be extended by Council by majority vote, indicating the length of the extension.
- f) Presenters may only present on the same topic once every six (6) months.
- g) A maximum of three (3) presentations per meeting will be placed on the agenda by the Clerk or designate.

22.12 Delegations on Agenda Items

- a) A person wishing to provide comment or ask a question on an agenda item may address Council for a period not exceeding five (5) minutes.
- b) Delegations must register in advance of the meeting start time by contacting the Clerk or designate or by filling out a request form at the meeting.
- c) An organized body or group wishing to address Council as a delegation shall be limited to a maximum of five (5) minutes regardless of the number of representatives in the group.
- d) The number of delegations per meeting shall be limited to ten (10).

22.13 Public Inquiries (Items Not on the Agenda)

- a) A person wishing to ask a question of Council or provide comment regarding an item not on the agenda, will be permitted two (2) minutes, provided the subject matter is within Council's jurisdiction.
- b) When called upon by the Chair, the participant shall identify themselves by name and address the question or comment to the Chair.
- c) Questions will be responded to at the meeting if possible and directed through the Chair. If an answer cannot be given at the meeting, responses will be provided in written form in a manner that is deemed appropriate (ie. correspondence or a memo report to appear on a subsequent agenda).
- d) Participants shall be encouraged to provide their questions to the Clerk in advance of the meeting to ensure a response can be provided and confirm the matter is within the jurisdiction of Council.
- e) Members of the public must register in advance of the meeting start time by contacting the Clerk or designate or by filling out a request form at the meeting.

23. Consent Agenda

- 23.1 Items on the Consent Agenda shall include, but are not limited to:
 - a) Correspondence for Council's information,
 - b) Resolutions from other municipalities,
 - b) Minutes of other committees and boards not requiring adoption by Council
- 23.2 When the Consent Agenda is called, Members may request that any item be pulled for further discussion and/or direction. Items on the Consent Agenda shall be dealt with by a single resolution, minus any items pulled.
- 23.3 Any correspondence received from municipalities and local boards requesting endorsement or consideration of a resolution shall:
 - a) be circulated to each member of the council and as directed by the CAO and Clerk;
 - b) be placed on the agenda for a meeting of the council or committee, only at the request of a member of the council or the CAO; and

c) be responded to by the Clerk, advising that the correspondence has been received.

24. Correspondence and Petitions

- 24.1 Any person may request to have correspondence or a petition added to a Council agenda on any matter within the jurisdiction of the Township.
- 24.2 Every written correspondence or petition addressed to Council shall be delivered to the Clerk no later than Thursday of the week preceding the meeting.
- 24.3 Every item of correspondence or petition to be presented to the council shall be legibly written or printed and shall not contain any obscene or improper matter or language and shall be signed by at least one person and filed with the Clerk. The Clerk shall not accept any correspondence or petition that contains any obscene or improper language, as determined by the Clerk in consultation with the Mayor.
- 24.4 Correspondence, including names and addresses, addressed to Council or directed to a Statutory Public Meeting become part of the public record and may be published in a report, agenda or minutes.
- 24.5 Anonymous correspondence will not be acknowledged, circulated, or placed on an agenda.
- 24.5 All items of correspondence and petitions are placed on the consent agenda and received for information, unless a member of Council pulls the item for discussion and consideration.

25. Committee Reports

- 25.1 Minutes of Committee of the Whole and other committees reporting to Council shall be presented to Council. The minutes and committee recommendations shall be approved by resolution.
- 25.2 At the request of any Member, any recommendation of Committee of the Whole or other committee may be discussed prior to voting on the approving resolution.
- 25.3 After the minutes of each meeting of the committee have been approved by Council, the minutes shall be signed by the Chair.

26. By-laws

- 26.1 No by-law except a by-law to confirm the proceedings of Council shall be presented to Council unless the subject matter thereof has been considered and approved by Council, through adoption of a committee recommendation or staff report recommendation, and a full copy of the by-law has been attached to the agenda.
- 26.2 Notwithstanding Section 26.1, by-laws of a purely administrative nature, such as appointment of officials required for enforcement of other by-laws or legislation, may be considered without previous report or recommendation. The Clerk, in consultation with the CAO and the Mayor, shall determine where this circumstance is appropriate.
- 26.3 Every by-law presented to Council shall have three readings.
- 26.3 Every by-law shall be introduced by a motion.
- 26.4 Every by-law enacted by Council shall be numbered and dated and shall be signed by the Mayor and Clerk, sealed with the seal of the corporation, engrossed in the by-law book and deposited for safe keeping.

26.5 Council shall enact a by-law to confirm all actions taken by Council.

27. Notice of Motion

- 27.1 Any member wishing to present a topic for discussion shall do so through providing notice of motion at a meeting of Council or Committee of the Whole. Members will relay their intention to present a motion, including the general nature of the motion and discussion, at a meeting of Council or Committee of the Whole and present their discussion through a formal motion for consideration at the subsequent meeting of Council.
- 27.2 Upon submitting their notice, the Member shall provide the Clerk and CAO a written copy of their motion for review and inclusion on a subsequent meeting agenda.
- 27.3 All notices of motions shall be considered at the subsequent Council meeting.
- 27.4 Council shall not consider items which have not been formally introduced by notice of motion. Where Council deems it appropriate to consider a matter in the absence of formal notice, a vote with majority support shall be required.
- 27.5 Where a motion is not being introduced and an item is being added to the agenda for discussion and information, the notice shall be deemed a notice of discussion and added to the subsequent Council agenda under New Business.

28. Adjournment

- 28.1 Council shall stand adjourned at 10:30 p.m. whether or not the business is concluded. Upon a vote of the majority of the Members present, the meeting may be extended to no later than 11:00 p.m.
- 28.2 All motions called in pursuance of the agenda and not disposed of shall be placed on the agenda for the next meeting unless otherwise decided by Council.

Part V - Rules of Debate

29. Speaking at Meetings

- 29.1 Every Member, prior to speaking to any matter or motion, shall ask leave of the Chair to so speak.
- 29.2 The Chair shall recognize Members on the order that they indicated a desire to speak. Preference shall be given to those who have not yet spoken on a matter.
- 29.2 When a Member is speaking, no other Member shall pass between him and the Chair or interrupt the Member speaking except to raise a Point of Order or Personal Privilege.

30. Motions and Amendments

- 30.1 After a motion has been moved and seconded, and placed under the direction of the Chair, it shall be considered to be in the possession of Council but may be withdrawn with the support of a majority of Council.
- 30.2 Every motion as herein provided shall be read by the Chair in the precise form in which it was introduced and when duly moved and seconded, the question shall then be open for discussion and consideration and recorded in the Minutes.

- 30.3 Prior to a question being voted on, each Member present in the Council chambers shall take their seat in respect of the vote unless they have declared a pecuniary interest pursuant to the *Municipal Conflict of Interest Act*.
- 30.4 Every motion shall be in writing except motions:
 - a) to approve the agenda or the amended agenda
 - b) to defer;
 - c) to refer;
 - d) to call the question;
 - e) to suspend the rules;
 - f) any other procedural motion; and
 - g) to adjourn.
- 30.5 A motion to amend when duly moved and seconded:
 - a) shall receive disposition of Council before the original question;
 - b) shall not be amended more than twice before voting:
 - c) shall be relevant to the question to be received:
 - d) shall not be received proposing a direct negative to the question:
 - e) may propose a separate and distinct disposition of a question; and
 - f) may propose to separate two or more components contained in the original question.
- 30.6 If the Chair wishes to table a motion, they shall designate the Deputy Mayor to chair the meeting until such time as the motion has been disposed of. The Chair may summarize their position on a matter only after all members of Council have had opportunity to speak to the matter.
- 30.7 After a question is deemed to be finally put by the Chair, no Member shall speak to the motion nor shall any other motion be made until after the vote is taken and the result has been declared.
- 30.8 The decision of the Chair as to whether the question has been finally put shall be final, except on appeal by any Member, upon which the decision of a majority of Council shall be conclusive.
- 30.9 Any Member may require any motion to be repeated from the Chair prior to the voting on such motion.
- 30.10 Any motion regarding an item not listed on the agenda shall be in the form of a notice of motion for a subsequent meeting. This provision may be waived with a two-thirds majority vote in favour of considering the motion.

31. Taking the Vote

- 31.1 The manner of determining the decision of Council on a motion shall be by show of hands, or in accordance with the Township Electronic Participation Policy.
- 31.2 If a Member moved that the vote be now taken (call the question) and another Member seconds it, the same shall be put without debate and if carried, the motion or amendment under discussion shall be immediately submitted to Council without further discussion.
- 31.3 When the motion under consideration contains two or more propositions, the same shall, at the request of any Member of Council, be put separately.
- 31.4 At the request of a member, a Motion containing distinct proposals may be divided and a separate vote taken for each proposal

- 31.4 Every Member who is present at the meeting at the time of the vote, shall vote, unless disqualified by reason of interest or otherwise. A failure to vote shall be deemed to be a negative vote.
- 31.5 The Chair, except where disqualified to vote by reason of interest or otherwise, may vote with the other Members on all questions.
- 31.6 The Chair shall declare the vote on all motions and should their declaration be stated by any Member to be in doubt, the Chair shall require the vote to be retaken and the results of this vote shall be final.
- 31.7 Except as otherwise provided in the *Municipal Act*, every Member shall have one vote.
- 31.8 No vote shall be taken by ballot or by any other method of secret voting and every vote so taken is of no effect.
- 31.9 Any question on which there is a tie vote shall be deemed to be lost, except where otherwise provided by any Act.

32. Recorded Vote

- 32.1 Where a vote is taken for any purpose and a Member requests immediately prior or immediately subsequent to the taking of the vote that the vote be recorded, each Member present, except a Member who is disqualified from voting by reason of interest or otherwise, shall announce their vote openly and the Clerk shall record each vote.
- 32.2 Any failure to vote by a Member who is present at the meeting at the time of the vote and who is qualified to vote shall be deemed to be a negative vote.
- 32.3 The names of those who vote for and those who vote against the question shall be entered in the Minutes. Each Member voting for the question shall say "for" and each Member voting against the question shall say "against".
- When recording the "for" votes and the "against" votes, the Clerk shall call the names of the Members and before the results of the vote are announced by the Chair, the Clerk shall, if requested, read the vote so taken.

33. Reconsideration

- 33.1 Any motion except a motion to refer, to amend, to table, to postpone indefinitely or to set a specific day or to adjourn may be reconsidered subject to the provisions contained in this section.
- 33.2 No discussion of the main question or the motion to reconsider the main question shall be allowed unless and until Council shall have voted to reconsider the same, but the Member who gives the notice may have the privilege of stating their reasons for doing so.
- 33.3 A motion to reconsider a decision of Council, within twelve (12) months shall have a majority vote of the whole of Council.
- 33.4 No motion to reconsider shall be considered more than once during the same meeting.
- 33.5 No motion to reconsider the same matter shall be considered more than once in the same term of Council.

- 33.6 A motion to revisit a decision from a previous Council term shall be considered new business and not a reconsideration.
- 33.7 A motion to reconsider a decision of Council at a future meeting shall be made by Notice of Motion.

34. Points of Order and Privilege

- 34.1 The Chair of a meeting shall preserve order and decide questions of order and privilege.
- 34.2 A Member may raise a Point of Order or a Point of Personal Privilege.
- 34.3 When a Member raises a Point of Order or a Point of Personal Privilege:
 - a) the Member shall ask leave of the Chair to raise the Point of Order or a Point of Personal Privilege and, after leave is granted, the Member shall state the Point of Order or a Point of Personal Privilege to the chair,
 - b) the Chair shall decide the Point of Order or a Point of Personal Privilege,
 - c) thereafter, a Member shall only address the Chair for the purpose of appealing the Chair's decision to Council or committee in which the Point of Order or a Point of Personal Privilege was raised.
 - d) if no Member appeals the decision of the Chair, the Chair's decision shall be final, and
 - e) if there is an appeal to Council or committee, the Chair shall immediately take a vote to sustain the Chair's decision, without debate, and the decision shall be final.

35. Absenteeism and Leave of Absence

- 35.1 All Members will endeavor to provide substantive notice of absence from meetings to the Mayor and Clerk at least forty-eight (48) hours, if possible, to the commencement of the meeting from which the Member shall be absent.
- Where a Member is absent from meetings of Council for three successive months without being authorized to do so by a resolution of Council, the office of that Member shall be declared to become vacant and procedures as set out in Section 263 of the *Municipal Act*, shall apply.

36. Minutes

- 36.1 The Clerk or designate shall prepare minutes of all meetings, including Closed Session, which shall record:
 - (a) The place, date and time of meeting,
 - (b) The name of the Chair and vice-Chair, or co-Chairs, and the attendance of the Members,
 - (c) The name of the recording secretary and senior staff present,
 - (d) The resolutions, directions, decisions, and other proceedings of the meeting, without note or comment, and
 - (e) The time of adjournment.
- 36.2 The minutes of each meeting of Council shall be presented to Council at the next regular meeting for approval.
- Notwithstanding Subsection 36.2 above, if the meeting of Council is less than five (5) days prior to a regular meeting of Council, the minutes may be presented to the meeting of Council at the next following regular meeting for approval.

- 36.4 After the minutes of each meeting of Council have been approved by Council, the minutes shall be signed by the Mayor and Clerk.
- The minutes of each meeting of a standing committee shall be presented to Council at the next regular meeting for approval of the recommendations therein and receipt of the minutes.
- 36.6 The Clerk or designate shall act as the recording secretary for Council and Committee of the Whole meetings, including Public Hearings.

Part VI - Committees

- 37. Committee of the Whole
 - 37.1 Regular meetings of Committee of the Whole shall be held in accordance with the approved annual meeting calendar.
 - 37.2 The Deputy Mayor shall be the Chair of Committee of the Whole.
 - 37.3 The Order of Business of Committee of the Whole shall be as follows:
 - 1. Call to Order
 - 2. Adoption of Agenda
 - 3. Announcements
 - 4. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest
 - 5. Public Participation
 - i. Presentations
 - ii. Delegations on Agenda Items
 - iii. Public Inquiries
 - 6. Updates From Members Appointed to County Council, Committees, and Local Boards
 - i. County Council
 - ii. Other Boards and Committees
 - 7. Recommendation Reports
 - 8. Unfinished Business
 - 9. New Business
 - 10. Notice of Motion
 - 11. Closed Session
 - 12. Reporting Out of Closed Session
 - 13. Date of Next Regular Meeting/Adjournment
 - 37.4 Recommendations of Committee of the Whole shall be in writing and shall have a mover and a seconder but shall not be in force until adopted at a subsequent Council meeting.
 - 37.5 The rules governing the procedures for Council shall be observed by Committee of the Whole insofar as applicable.
- 38. Other Committees
 - 38.1 Council may, by resolution, establish committees, including Ad-Hoc or Advisory Committees, which shall advise Council on matters assigned or referred to them by Council.

- 38.2 Each committee shall elect a Chair and shall meet as per the annual meeting schedule set by the Committee, or as otherwise adopted by Committee resolution.
- 38.3 A quorum for a committee shall be a majority of those appointed to the committee by Council.
- 38.4 The rules governing the procedures for Council shall be observed in all committees insofar as applicable, with the exception that motions need only a mover and not a seconder. Motions are required to conduct committee business.
- 38.5 Motions and recommendations made by committees shall not be in force until adopted at a subsequent Council meeting.
- 38.6 The Order of Business of committees shall be determined by each committee, but at least shall include:
 - 1. Call to Order
 - 2. Additions to the Agenda/Adoption of Agenda
 - 3. Minutes of Previous Meetings
 - 4. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest
 - 5. Public Participation
 - 6. Staff Reports
 - 7. Closed Session
 - 8. Adjournment
- 38.7 A committee which refuses or neglects to give due consideration to any matter assigned to it or before it may, by Council resolution, be discharged of such responsibility.
- 38.8 Each committee is subject to the control and direction of Council.
- 38.9 Each committee shall record minutes on all matters connected with their duties or referred to them by Council.
- 38.10 The Clerk or designate shall act as secretary to committees.

Part VII - Strategic Sessions

- 39. Strategic Session Procedures
- 39.1 Strategic sessions shall be scheduled and held in accordance with the annual meeting calendar where possible and shall have only <u>one</u> meeting topic, identified at the time of calling.
- 39.2 Strategic sessions shall be treated as Special Council meetings for the purpose of calling a meeting, provided the meeting was not included in the approved annual meeting calendar.
- 39.3 Council shall pass a resolution to move into the strategic session and pass a resolution to move back into regular session upon conclusion of the session.
- While in a strategic session, sections 22 and sections 29-33 of this By-Law shall not apply and the following rules shall be observed instead:

- i. Members may address questions directly to staff and are not required to seek leave of the chair to do so.
- ii. Presentations by consultants or professional services engaged by the Township may be invited to present alongside staff presentations and will not be subject to delegation time limits.
- iii. Council, staff, and consulting personnel shall engage in respectful and courteous dialogue at all times.
- 39.5 Council not shall table or pass any resolutions in the strategic session. Upon return to regular session, Council may table motions, where the rules of debate and other provisions of this By-law apply.

Part VIII - Accessibility

40. Accessibility

40.1 All agendas, documents and minutes shall be prepared in a machine readable, sans serif font of at least 12 points, and alternative formats of agendas, documents and minutes shall be made available upon request.

Part IX - Repeal

41. Repeal

41.1 By-law 2017-091 and By-law 2017-106 are hereby repealed.

Read a first and second time this 20th day of November, 2019.

Read a third time and finally passed this 20th day of November, 2019.

Original Signed by Mayor Dwight Burley

Original Signed by Clerk, Wendi Hunter